
Federal Bar Association 
National Council Meeting 

Midyear Meeting 2017 

Saturday, March 18, 2017 at 2:15 p.m.  

Capital Hilton Hotel 
Washington, DC 



National	Council	Meeting	Agenda	
Saturday,	March	18,	2017	at	2:15	p.m.	EST	

Capital	Hilton	Hotel	
Washington,	DC	

1. Call	to	Order Hon.	Michael	Newman	

2. Consent	Agenda (Tab	A)	 Hon.	Michael	Newman	
 Approval	of	the	Minutes	(September	17,	2016)
 Constitution,	Bylaws,	Rules	and	Resolutions	Committee Report
 ABA	Delegate	Report
 Federal	Bar	Building	Corporation	Report

3. Report	from	the	President (Tab	B)	 Hon.	Michael	Newman	
 FBA	Midyear	Update
 Actions	of	the	Board	of	Directors
 Nominations	and	Elections	Committee	Report

4. Report	from	the	Treasurer (Tab	C)	 Maria	Vathis	
 Year‐end	Financials	as	of	September	30,	2016	(unaudited)
 Financial	Update	as	of	December	31,	2016

5. Reports
 Report	from	the	President	of	the	Foundation	of	the	FBA (Tab	D)	 Sharon	O’Grady	

 Report	from	the	Executive	Director Stacy	King	

 Report	from	the	President‐Elect Kip	Bollin	

 Report	from	the	Chair	of	the	Government (Tab	E)	 West	Allen	
Relations	Committee

 Report	from	the	Chair	of	the	Membership	Committee Jonathan	Hafen		

6. Unfinished	Business Hon.	Michael	Newman	

7. New	Business Hon.	Michael	Newman	

8. President’s	Final	Remarks Hon.	Michael	Newman	

9. Adjournment Hon.	Michael	Newman	



FY2017	FBA	National	Conferences	and	Meetings	

CONFERENCE  DATE LOCATION 

Tax Law Conference  March 3 Washington, DC / Ronald Reagan Building 

Labor & Employment March 9-10 San Antonio, TX / Hilton Palacio Del Rio 

Moot Court Competition March 16-17 Washington, DC 

BOD Meeting March 16-17* Washington, DC / Capital Hilton 

Midyear Meeting March 18 Washington, DC / Capital Hilton 

Indian Law Conference April 6-7 Scottsdale, AZ / Talking Stick Resort 

YLD’s Emerging Professionals  April 27 Minneapolis, MN 

Leadership Training April 21-22 Washington, DC / Capital Hilton 

Immigration Law May 12-13 Denver, CO / Embassy Suites Conv. Center 

Insurance Tax Seminar June 1-2 Washington, DC / JW Marriott 

BOD Meeting June 23 Philadelphia, PA / TBD 

BOD Meeting September 14 Atlanta, GA / Westin Peachtree Plaza 

Annual Meeting & Convention September 14-16 Atlanta, GA / Westin Peachtree Plaza 



TAB A 
Approval of the Minutes (September 17, 2016) 

Constitution, Bylaws, Rules and Resolutions Committee Report 

ABA Delegate Report 

Federal Bar Building Corporation Report 



Federal Bar Association 

National Council 
Saturday, September 17, 2016 

8:00 a.m. EDT 
Westin Cleveland Downtown 

Cleveland, Ohio 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

President Vincent called the meeting to order at 8:02 EDT with a quorum present. The 
agenda was adopted as distributed prior to the meeting.  

   
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the April 2, 2016 meeting. The motion was 
properly seconded and passed unanimously. 

 

REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT 

President Vincent reported on the actions of the Board of Directors since the last meeting of 
the National Council: 

 
Actions of the Board of Directors at its June 17, 2016 meeting 

 Approved the FY2017 Budget 
 Approved revised Policy 2-7: Section and Division Administrative Fee 
 Approved the bylaws and dues of the LGBT Law Section 
 Approved a $12,000 donation made by the Securities Law Section to Columbia Law 

School 
 Referred the review and ruling of the Immigration Law Section’s bylaws regarding term 

limits to the Sections and Divisions Council 
 Approved the amended bylaws of the Immigration Law Section 
 Approved the charter for the establishment of the Wisconsin Chapter 
 Approved the FY2017 Issues Agenda as recommended by Government Relations 

Committee 
 Approved the selection of the South Carolina Chapter as host chapter for the 2020 FBA 

Annual Meeting and Convention 
 Approved the appointment of Judge Lisa Smith as Circuit Vice President to fill the 

vacancy in the Second Circuit 
 

Actions of the Board of Directors at its September 15, 2016 meeting 
 Approved recommendation from the Government Relations Committee to add the 

following language to the Issues Agenda; “Support U.S. Senate ratification of the 
Marrakesh Treaty, which would allow for copyright exceptions to facilitate the creation 
of accessible versions of books and other copyrighted works for persons who are blind, 
visually impaired or otherwise print-disabled.” 
 

  



REPORT OF THE TREASURER 

Kip Bollin presented the financial statements as of July 31, 2016 which cover 
approximately 83 percent of the year’s budget. The total assets of the FBA are valued at 
$3,100,000. Net assets are up by about $112,000 compared to last year, and are 
approximately seven months of operating expenses. Currently, the FBA’s total revenue is 
at 85 percent of budget and activity expenses are at 83 percent of budget. 

  
REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

Karen Silberman began her report by thanking all members of National Council for their 
continued dedication to the Federal Bar Association.  
 
Ms. Silberman has decided to leave the Federal Bar Association at the end of FY2016. 
She reported on the successes experienced by the organization over the past four years 
including membership totals, membership retention, webinar revenue, chapter creation, 
advocacy and meeting attendance. Ms. Silberman also reported that the Federal Bar 
Association is financially healthier than ever before. The organization has experienced a 
budget surplus every year since FY2013.  
 
Stacy King will serve as the Acting Executive Director beginning on October 1. Ms. King 
outlined the organizational focuses for FY2017. 

 
REPORT FROM THE PRESIDENT-ELECT 

President-Elect Hon. Michael J. Newman recognized Kip Bollin and Glen McMurry for 
all their great work in planning the 2016 Annual Meeting and Convention.  

 
REPORTS 

Report from the Chair of the Nominations and Elections Committee 
President Vincent gave the report of Nominations and Elections Committee. The 
following individuals were elected to terms beginning Oct. 1, 2016: 

 

Officers 

President-Elect.................................................................Kip T. Bollin  
Treasurer.......................................................................Maria Z. Vathis  
 

Directors 

Group 1....................................................................Jonathan O. Hafen 
Group 2........................................................................Vildan A. Teske 
Group 3.................................................................Hon. Robin E. Feder 
Group 4....................................................................David A. Goodwin 
 
 

Vice Presidents for the Circuits 

1st Circuit..........................................................Matthew C. Moschella 
2nd Circuit...................................................................Ernest T. Bartol 
3rd Circuit...............................……………………Frank J. McGovern 
4th Circuit....................................... ………...Hannah Rogers Metcalfe 
5th Circuit......................................................................Barry W. Ashe 



6th Circuit...............................................................Thomas G. McNeil 
7th Circuit.......................................................... Sheri H. Mecklenburg 
8th Circuit...................................................................Adine S. Momoh 
9th Circuit..........................................................Hon. Alison S. Bachus 
10th Circuit.................................... ………................Daniel W. Lewis 
11th Circuit................................................................Michael S. Vitale 
D.C. Circuit.................................................................. Elizabeth Pugh 

Report from the Government Relations Committee 
West Allen recognized members of the committee and Bruce Moyer and presented the 
report of the Government Relations Committee. Current FBA advocacy priorities are as 
follows: support for adequate funding for the federal courts, prompt action on judicial 
vacancies and establishment of additional judgeships and support for establishment of an 
Article I Immigration Court. Mr. Allen reported that the Board of Directors recently 
approved the 2017 Issues Agenda at their July 2016 meeting. Finally, Mr. Allen reported 
that 48 chapters currently have Chapter Government Relations Liaisons. 

Report from the Constitution, Rules, Resolutions and Bylaws Committee 
Beth Smith presented the report of the Constitution, Rules, Resolutions and Bylaws 
Committee. 

The Board of Directors recommended the creation of the Community Service and 
Outreach Committee, a new programmatic standing committee. The Constitution, 
Bylaws, Rules, and Resolutions Committee proposed language to serve this purpose. 
Oliver Ruiz moved to accept the proposed amendment to Bylaw 8.A.2: Addition of the 
following under “Programmatic Committees and Boards” 
e. Community Service and Outreach. The Community Service and Outreach Committee is
responsible to coordinate, implement and assist efforts to serve and support the 
communities in which members practice. The Committee’s responsibilities may include, 
but are not limited to community service; civics; efforts to support the well-being of 
members, their families, and their communities; and activities pro bono public. The 
Committee is authorized to coordinate as appropriate with the Foundation of the Federal 
Bar Association in efforts of common interest. The Committee is intended to support and 
not displace separate community service efforts of other chapters, sections, or divisions 
of the Association. The President may authorize formation or cessation of subcommittees 
of the Community Service Committee according to then-current needs and opportunities.  

And amendment to Bylaw 8.B to the following:  
B. Committee Composition and Terms of Office. The composition of the following 
Standing Committees: (1) Constitution, Bylaws, Rules and Resolutions; (2) Membership; 
(3) Professional Ethics; and (4) Community Service and Outreach shall consist of at least 
nine members, at least six of whom are from different Circuits. The president shall 
appoint a member as chairperson. Any vacancy shall be filled by appointment by the 
President for the time remaining in the vacated term. The terms shall be on a three (3) 
year staggered basis.  
Mr. Ruiz’s motion was properly seconded and carried. 



Report from President of the Foundation of the Federal Bar Association  
Néstor Méndez-Gómez presented the report of the Foundation of the Federal Bar 
Association. He reported that 12 chapters were awarded Chapter Community Outreach 
Grants: Alaska Chapter, Broward County Chapter, Central District of Illinois Chapter, 
Eastern District of Michigan Chapter, Eastern District of New York Chapter, Minnesota 
Chapter, North Dakota Chapter, Oregon Chapter, San Joaquin Valley Chapter, South 
Carolina Chapter, Utah Chapter and the Western District of North Carolina Chapter. Mr. 
Méndez-Gómez also reported that Crystal Swinford is the recipient of the 2016 Robert A. 
McNew Law Student Scholarship and Stephanie N. Higginson is the recipient of the 2016 
Kintner Public Service Scholarship. Lastly, Mr. Méndez-Gómez reported that Foundation 
of the Federal Bar Association supported the inaugural National Community Outreach 
Project by distributing $26,000 to 13 chapters. 

President Vincent presided over the election of the three open director positions on the 
Foundation of the Federal Bar Association Board of Directors by the National Council. 
Matthew B. Moreland, Sharon L. O’Grady and Henry M. Quillian III were nominated by 
the Foundation Nominations Committee prior to the National Council meeting. David 
Ferrari moved to elect Mr. Moreland, Ms. O’Grady and Mr. Quillian as directors on the 
Foundation of the FBA’s Board of Directors. The motion was properly seconded and 
passed.  

Report from the President of the Federal Bar Building Corporation 
Robert Mueller provided a history of the Federal Bar Building Corporation and stated the 
investment fund of the FBBC is valued at approximately $5 million.  

President Vincent presided over the election of the two open director positions on the 
FBBC Board of Directors by the National Council. Joyce Kitchens and Hon. Delissa 
Ridgway were nominated by the FBBC Nominating Committee prior to the National 
Council meeting. Adrienne Berry moved to elect Ms. Kitchens and Judge Ridgway as 
directors on the FBBC Board of Directors. The motion was properly seconded and 
passed.  

Report from the Membership Committee 
Jonathan Hafen reported that membership is at all-time high at 18,546 members. He 
recognized chapter, section, division leaders, board of directors, staff and the membership 
committee for their work. Mr. Hafen discussed the membership rules of engagement 
which included obtaining a membership chair and plan, engaging members via contact 
with Sections and Divisions and achieving membership growth of at least three percent 
per year. Mr. Hafen also recognized the chapters that achieved their membership goals as 
they related to the Countdown to Cleveland Membership Challenge. Finally, Mr. Hafen 
encouraged all members of National Council to become Sustaining Members. 



UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

The following officers, directors and Circuit Vice Presidents were sworn in by Judge 
Newman: Mr. Bollin, Ms. Vathis, Mr. Hafen, Ms. Teske, Judge Feder, Mr. Goodwin, Mr. 
Moschella, Mr. Bartol, Mr. McGovern, Ms. Rogers Metcalfe, Mr. Ashe, Mr. McNeil, Ms. 
Mecklenburg, Ms. Momoh, Judge Bachus, Mr. Lewis, Mr. Vitale, and Ms. Pugh. 

President-Elect Newman thanked President Vincent for his service and gifted him with the 
President’s Tower.  

NEW BUSINESS 

Kevin Maxim, Joyce Kitchens and Henry Quillian presented a promotional video about 
Atlanta, the site of the 2017 Annual Meeting and Convention. 

President Vincent recognized the service of Committee Chairs and distributed awards. Mr. 
Hafen recognized outgoing Vice Presidents for the Circuits: Bridget Montgomery, James 
Satola and Phillip Schatz. Judge Bachus thanked Mr. Hafen for his service as Chair of the 
Vice Presidents for the Circuits. 

PRESIDENT'S FINAL REMARKS AND ADJOURNMENT 

President Vincent acknowledged the staff, the leaders and he adjourned the meeting at 
10:35 EDT. 

2016-2017 CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

 Federal Litigation and Qui Tam Conference, October 18, Washington, D.C.
 D.C. Indian Law Conference, November 4, Washington, D.C.
 Art Law and Litigation Conference, November 30, Miami, Fla.
 Board of Directors Meeting, January 2017, Charleston, SC
 Fashion Law Conference, February 10, New York, N.Y.
 Tax Law Conference, March 3, Washington, D.C.
 Labor and Employment Law Conference, March 9-10, San Antonio, Texas
 Moot Court Competition, March 16-17, Washington, D.C.
 Board of Directors Meeting, March 17, Washington, D.C.
 Midyear Meeting, March 18, Washington, D.C.
 Indian Law Conference, April 6-7, Scottsdale, Ariz.
 Capitol Hill Day, April 20, Washington, D.C.
 Chapter, Section & Division Leadership Training, April 21-22, Washington, D.C.
 Immigration Law Conference, May 12-13, Denver, Colorado
 Insurance Tax Seminar, June 1-2, Washington, D.C.
 Board of Directors Meeting, June, Philadelphia, PA
 Annual Meeting and Convention, September 14-16, Atlanta, Ga.

Respectfully submitted, 
Karen Silberman 
Executive Director 



Constitution, Bylaws, Rules and Resolutions Committee 
Date: February 10, 2017 

To: Federal Bar Association’s National Council 

From: Constitution, Bylaws, Rules and Resolutions Committee 

Tyler Brooks  
Geoffrey Cheshire 
Kirstin Connor 
Stacy King (Staff Liaison) 
Kevin Maxim (Chair) 
Matt Moschella 

Peg O’Connor 
Thomas Schuck  
Tom Segars 
Beth Smith 
Paul Vamvas

Re: Committee Report 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

Pursuant to the Federal Bar Association’s Bylaws at Sections 8(a)(1)(c) and 14, the 
Constitution, Bylaws, Rules and Resolutions Committee (the “Committee”) reports that it has 
received a proposal from FBA member Jim Satola to amend the FBA’s Constitution.  

Mr. Satola proposes to amend the Constitution so as to clarify that the FBA does not 
maintain a Circuit Vice President position for the Federal Circuit. Mr. Satola’s proposal is 
attached.  

The Committee is currently considering the proposal, and will report its recommendation 
to the Board of Directors for the Board’s March 2017 meeting.  The Committee will then submit 
its report on the proposal to the September 2017 National Council convening at the FBA’s 
Annual Meeting & Convention in Atlanta. 



On Jan 13, 2017, at 9:06 PM, James W. Satola <jsatola@roadrunner.com> wrote: 

Here is something for consideration at the upcoming FBA Board of Directors meeting:  a 
proposal to amend the language of the FBA Constitution to clarify the definition of Circuit Vice 
President to conform to the actual purpose of having CVPs -- to advise and assist those Chapters 
within each geographic region drawn by the boundaries of the numbered/geographic federal 
circuits, and to put an end to a claim of there being two "open" seats for "CVP for the Federal 
Circuit." 

The role of Circuit Vice President is defined somewhat ambiguously in the FBA Constitution: 

Article V – Officers, Directors and Delegates: Nomination, Removal, and Duties 

Section 1. Elective Officers, Directors and Delegates. The elective officers and directors of the 
Association shall assume their respective offices at the beginning of the fiscal year to which they 
are elected and shall serve through the end of the fiscal year in which their terms expire or until 
their successors shall have been installed in office.  * * * The elective officers and directors of 
the Association shall be as follows and in the order named and shall be elected to terms of office 
as indicated: 

* * * 

e. Two Vice Presidents for the Circuit for each Federal judicial circuit, who shall be elected for
staggered terms of two years by the members within that Circuit. No Vice President for the 
Circuit shall serve more than three full terms. 

The duties of the CVPs are then later listed as follows: 

Section 6. Duties of Officers and Directors.  

* * * 

e. Each Vice President for the Circuit shall serve as liaison with all Chapters within that officer’s
Circuit; shall serve as counselor and advisor for such Chapters in the promotion of their welfare; 
shall undertake and supervise creation of new Chapters and reactivation of inactive Chapters in 
that officer’s Circuit as appropriate; shall represent that officer’s Circuit on the National Council; 
and shall perform such other duties as properly pertain to the office or as may be required by the 
President, this Constitution, or the Bylaws of the Association. 



Having "Federal Circuit" CVPs, with no Chapters to assist or supervise (or being completely 
redundant to the role of the "geographic Circuit" CVPs) because there are no Chapters residing 
outside a geographic Circuit (and such is an impossibility) would be both pointless, while at the 
same time be self-aggrandizing as a "Federal Circuit" CVP could claim to be the "equal partner" 
of each and EVERY geographic Circuit CVP pair, thus giving such position claim to being a 
"super-CVP." 

A simple way to put an end to any claim of a "right" to hold such a pointless position would be 
to clarify the definition of the role of CVP in the FBA Constitution as being representatives of 
each of the GEOGRAPHIC federal circuits.   

James W. Satola 
2608 Dysart Road 
University Heights, Ohio 
44118-4409 
P: (216) 321-6926 
C: (216) 702-5038 
jsatola@roadrunner.com 































February 9, 2017 
 
MEMORANDUM TO:  Members of the Federal Bar Association National Council; members of 
the Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Robert C. Mueller, President and Chairman of the Board, Federal Bar Building Corp. 
 
SUBJECT:  FBBC financials 
 
 
 For your information and update, under this cover memorandum please find the Financial 
Statements of the Federal Bar Building Corporation (FBBC) for that portion of FY 2017 through 
December 31, 2016, so that you may see the current financial status of the investments and 
operational costs.  This includes the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of 
Activities.  Please keep in mind that these are unaudited financials at this point; while historically 
accurate, the possibility remains of minor adjustments. 
 

As you may or may not know, these investments are a product of an enormous effort 
made several decades ago by Federal Bar Association (FBA) two-time President Earl Kintner.  
In the name of the FBBC, a then-newly created IRS Code Section 501(c)(2) organization, Earl 
personally – assisted by a group of influential friends and colleagues – conducted an intensive 
fundraising effort that produced contributions and grants that fully funded the construction of a 
building that housed the first formal headquarters of the FBA on H Street, NW, in Washington, 
DC.  That ambitious effort was funded without any monies from the FBA. 
 
 Since then, the FBA moved to a new headquarters building on M Street, NW, in 
Washington, and then to the current headquarters condominium in Arlington, VA.  In each of 
these moves, the purchase of the headquarters space by the FBBC was totally funded by the sale 
of the previous building.  No contributions from the FBA were required.  Each time, the 
remaining funds realized from the sale were invested for the purpose of supporting the 
operational/maintenance/capital-improvement costs of the new office space. 
 
 Through hard work and careful decision-making based on sound financial advice, the 
FBBC Board of Directors over time has built the investments that are reported in these 
financials.  The stated investment policy of the Board is to accumulate an investment portfolio 
that is sufficient to weather any financial crisis or unexpected substantial expense, so that the 
headquarters of the FBA is reliably ensured.  When the investment goal is reached, under Section 
501(c)(2) the FBBC will periodically distribute funds that are in excess of that goal as of 
September 30 of any given year to the FBA and/or the Foundation of the Federal Bar – the 
FBBC’s two “parent” organizations. 
 
 A principal consequential benefit to the FBA from all this is that, for current rent of 

$60,000 per year paid to the FBBC, the FBA enjoys office space that presently has a fair 

market rental value of $450,075 per year. 



FBBC 

FEDERAL BAR BUILDING CORPORATION 
 
 

 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 

 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED 

 
 

 

 



Dec

2016

Dec

2015

A S S E T S

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash & Cash Equivalents $40,444 $7,013
Prepaid Expenses 1,814 1,814
Accounts Receivable 0 0

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 42,259 8,827

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Building 4,100,260 4,100,260
Leasehold Improvements 517,495 513,765
Phone System 18,977 18,977
Furniture & Fixtures 99,353 98,942

4,736,085 4,731,944

Accumulated  Depreciation-Building (731,563) (626,428)
Accumulated  Depreciation-Leasehold Improvments (153,907) (139,678)
Accumulated  Depreciation-Phone System (16,763) (14,865)
Accumulated  Depreciation-Furniture & Fixtures (83,893) (74,193)

(986,126) (855,165)

NET PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 3,749,959 3,876,779

OTHER ASSETS
Investments - Mutual Funds 5,282,548 5,056,817

TOTAL ASSETS $9,074,765 $8,942,423

L I A B I L I T I E S

CURRENT  LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $26,779 $27,629
Due to Affiliates 0 0
Prepaid Rental Income 5,000 5,000

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 31,779 32,629

N E T  A S S E T S

NET ASSETS
Begining Balance Unrestricted 9,137,567 8,864,843
Change in Net Assets (94,581) 44,951

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $9,074,765 $8,942,423

FEDERAL BAR BUILDING CORP
Statement of Financial Position

12/31/2016
Preliminary and Unaudited



Dec

2016

2017

YTD

Actual

2016

YTD

Actual

2017

Annual

Budget

2017

Actual/Budget

Variance

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Rental income

Federal Bar Association $37,506 $112,519 $97,027 $450,075 $337,556
Interest and dividend income 36,998 47,951 77,742 125,491 77,540
Miscellaneous Income 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 74,505 160,470 174,769 575,566 415,096

EXPENSES
Administrative Fees 2,000 6,000 6,000 24,000 18,000
Condo Fees 4,970 14,910 14,961 63,000 48,090
Depreciation 10,913 32,740 32,740 131,000 98,260
Real Estate Tax / Personal Property Tax 0 33,766 34,971 49,000 15,234
Repairs & Maintenance 0 0 229 4,000 4,000
Insurance 202 605 605 3,500 2,895
Investment Fees 2,224 6,671 5,959 25,000 18,329
Board Meetings 0 440 0 1,000 560
Postage 0 2 18 25 23
Telephone 0 0 7 25 25
Supplies 0 0 0 100 100
Stationary & Printing 1 5 29 0 (5)
Professional Fees 0 3,548 0 6,000 2,452
Travel 0 13 5 1,000 987
In-Kind Contribution Expense 32,506 97,519 82,027 390,075 292,556
Miscellaneous Expense 6 75 17 300 225

TOTAL EXPENSES 52,823 196,294 177,569 698,025 501,731

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 21,682 (35,824) (2,800) (122,459) (86,635)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investments 1,720 1,720 (30,824) 0 (1,720)
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 29,472 (60,477) 78,575 0 60,477

TOTAL OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 31,192 (58,757) 47,751 0 58,757

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 52,874 (94,581) 44,951 (122,459) (27,878)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 9,137,567 8,864,843 0 (9,137,567)

NET ASSETS 52,874 9,042,986 8,909,794 (122,459) (9,165,445)

FEDERAL BAR BUILDING CORP
Statement of Activities

For the Three Months Ending Saturday, December 31, 2016
Preliminary and Unaudited



TAB B 
Report from the President 

























































































































 

 

 

 

ACTIONS	OF	THE	BOARD	OF	DIRECTORS	FY2017	
	
	
September	15,	2016	Meeting	

 Adopted	a	resolution	that	authorizes	and	empowers	the	Executive	Director,	
President,	and	Treasurer	to	execute	agreements,	give	direction,	and	receive	
information	to/from	SunTrust	Bank	regarding	the	investment	and	custody	accounts	
of	the	Federal	Bar	Association	

 Adopted	a	resolution	that	authorizes	and	empowers	the	Executive	Director,	
President,	and	Treasurer	to	act,	give	instructions,	access	information,	use	Bank’s	
services,	perform	transactions,	enter	into	agreements,	and	delegate	authority	on	
behalf	the	operational	account	of	the	Federal	Bar	Association	at	SunTrust	Bank	

 Approved	FY2017	committee	appointments	
 

December	21,	2016	Meeting	
 Approved	the	Securities	Law	Section’s	request	to	donate	$25,000	of	section	funds	to	

the	SEC	Historical	Society 
 

January	27,	2017	Meeting	
 Approved	the	minutes	from	the	September	15,	2016	board	meeting 
 Approved	the	appointment	of	Anh	Kremer	as	director	to	fulfill	the	term	of	Richard	

Dellinger	upon	his	resignation 
 Approved	the	honorary	membership	for	Dean	Erwin	Chemerinksy 
 Approved	the	FY2017	Budget	Reforecast 
 Approved	the	Labor	and	Employment	Law	Section’s	Bylaw	amendments 
 Approved	the	International	Law	Section’s	dues	increase	to	$15 
 Approved	the	Securities	Law	Section’s	request	to	donate	$15,000	of	section	funds	to	

Columbia	University’s	Annual	Securities	Law	Conference 
 Approved	the	Central	Louisiana	Chapter’s	charter 
 Approved	the	creation	of	and	appointments	to	the	Task	Force	on	Obtaining	U.N.	

Consultative	Status 
 Approved	Policy	1‐13:	Standards	for	Professional	Ethics	and	Conduct 
 Approved	extending	Policy	1‐7:	Conflict	of	Interest	to	all	FBA	leaders 
 Established	the	Chapter	Community	Service	Award 
 Established	the	Outstanding	Leader	Awards	to	recognize	one	circuit	vice	president,	

one	section	or	division	chair,	and	up	to	three	chapter	leaders	each	year	at	annual	
meeting 

 



 

 

 
TAB C 

Report from the Treasurer 

 
 



2016 2015

Assets
Current Assets
     Cash and cash equivalents  $                     696,514  $                    409,943 

     Short-term Investments                         452,340                        434,713 

     Long-term Investments                      1,787,850                     1,648,045 

     Accounts Receivable                         146,401                          40,839 

     Inventory                           14,081                          16,147 

     Prepaid expenses                         121,212                          99,226 

------------------------------- ------------------------------

          Total Current Assets 3,218,398                    2,648,913                   
------------------------------- ------------------------------

Other Assets
     Furniture and fixtures                         186,201                        187,172 

     Computer equipment and software                         565,896                        519,924 

------------------------------- ------------------------------

     Total Property and Equipment before Acc Depr 752,097                       707,096                      

     Accumulated depreciation                       (576,091)                      (525,091)

------------------------------- ------------------------------

          Net Property and Equipment 176,006                       182,005                      
------------------------------- ------------------------------

          Total Assets 3,394,404$                  2,830,918$                 
================== ==================

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
     Accounts payable  $                     543,076  $                    345,690 

     Accrued annual leave                           35,032                          44,183 

     Deferred membership dues                         115,028                        121,400 

     Due to related entities                             8,867                            4,767 

     Other                           26,759                          24,105 

------------------------------- ------------------------------

          Total Current Liabilities 746,997                       580,950                      
------------------------------- ------------------------------

Net Assets

          Total Net Assets 2,647,407                    2,249,968
------------------------------- ------------------------------

          Total Liabilities and Net Assets 3,394,404$                  2,830,918$                 
================== ==================

September, 2016 and 2015
Statement of Financial Position

Federal Bar Association

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management has elected to omit 

the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 Percent

YTD YTD Budget of Budget

Support and Revenue:
(1) National dues  $          1,980,404  $          1,865,703 1,971,763$   100%

(2) Sustaining dues                 728,728                 709,777 745,266        98%

(3) Section/division dues                 206,792                 173,772 175,000        118%

(4) Conferences              1,138,355              1,049,058 1,140,000     100%

(5) Co-sponsored conferences                   50,000                   50,000 50,000          100%

(6) Sections/divisions activities                   74,625                   72,228 80,000          93%

(7) Administrative and other revenues 370,916                289,181                243,100        153%

     (Schedule I)

In-Kind Contribution Revenues 390,075 328,108                328,108 119%

-------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------- ------------------

Total support and revenue 4,939,895            4,537,827            4,733,237    104%

Expenses:

(8) Activity expenses (Schedule II) 2,478,967             2,309,241             2,448,500     101%

(9) General and overhead expenses 2,176,504             2,026,386             2,240,108     97%

     (Schedule III)

-------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------- ------------------

     Total expenses 4,655,471            4,335,627            4,688,608    99%

-------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------- ------------------

Change in net assets before other Income (Expense) 284,424                202,200                

Other Income (Expense)
   Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments 136,538                ( 69,924 )              

   Realized Gain/ (Loss) on Investments ( 23,519 )               ( 12,185 )              

     Total Other Income (Expense) 113,019                ( 82,109 )              

Change in Net Assets 397,443                120,091                

Net Assets, beginning of year 2,249,964 2,129,877             

Current Net Assets 2,647,407$           2,249,968$           

Federal Bar Association
Statement of Activities

For the  Twelve Month Ending September 30, 2016

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management has elected to omit the statement 

of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



Federal Bar Association
SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER REVENUES

Schedule I
For the  Twelve Month Ending September 30, 2016

FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 Percent

YTD YTD Budget of Budget

Schedule of Revenues

(7.02) Administrative Fees (FFBA)  $      27,250  $   13,500  $     28,500 96%

(7.03) Administrative Fees (Sections&Divisions)          55,188       52,772         55,100 100%

(7.04) Interest/Dividend Income          52,779       66,346                  - 

(7.05) FBA Need an Attorney          19,500       18,200         18,500 105%

(7.06) The Federal Lawyer & Publications          30,424       31,937         33,000 92%

(7.07) Royalty Income            4,108         3,415           5,000 82%

(7.09) Job Board            1,901         1,821           2,500 76%

(7.10) Webinars        162,808       80,914         85,000 192%

(7.11) List Sales            3,878         3,372           5,500 71%

(7.12) Miscellaneous Income          13,080       16,904         10,000 131%

------------------ --------------- ----------------- --------------

   Total Administrative and
    Other Revenues 370,916$    289,181$ 243,100$   153%

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. 

Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



Federal Bar Association
SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITY EXPENSES

Schedule II
For the  Twelve Month Ending September 30, 2016

FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 Percent

YTD YTD Budget of Budget

Schedule of Activity Expenses

Activity Expenses
(8.01) President & BOD  $     123,427  $     115,602 125,000$     99%

(8.02) National Council 4,100            6,018            6,500           63%

(8.03) Circuit Vice Presidents 38,994          43,730          45,000         87%

(8.04) NC Appointees 6,875            10,457          11,000         63%

(8.05) Past Presidents 7,362            8,331            8,500           87%

(8.06) Gov. Committees & Board 30                4                  500              6%

(8.07) National Elections 11,748          9,802            11,500         102%

(8.08) Government Relations 72,707          71,301          78,000         93%

(8.09) Chapter Delegate 30,594          52,665          53,000         58%

(8.10) Chapter Leadership Training 72,407          63,910          66,000         110%

(8.11) Chapter Activity Fund 16,475          15,450          20,000         82%

(8.12) Chapter Rebates 491,589        475,156        502,000       98%

(8.13) Chapter Services 15,004          11,490          12,000         125%

(8.14) Membership Services 72,987          60,995          70,000         104%

(8.15) Membership Programs 11,714          10,864          12,000         98%

(8.16) The Federal Lawyer & Publications 268,164        240,611        275,000       98%

(8.17) FBA Conferences 881,383        795,595        805,000       109%

(8.18) Membership Marketing 11,421          9,765            12,000         95%

(8.19) Meetings Marketing 19,781          14,648          20,000         99%

(8.20) Webinar CLE Fees 16,467          12,095          13,000         127%

------------------- ------------------- ------------------ -----------------

   Subtotal Activity Expenses 2,173,229    2,028,489    2,146,000    101%

(8.21) Section and Divisions 268,748        243,712        255,000       105%

(8.22) FBA Funded Divisions 33,158          34,980          40,000         83%

(8.23) Section Council 3,832                        2,060 2,500           153%

(8.24) Section Activity Fund 5,000           0%

------------------- ------------------- ------------------ -----------------

   Subtotal Section & Division
     Activity Expense 305,738       280,752       302,500       101%

------------------- ------------------- ------------------ -----------------

Total Activity Expenses 2,478,967$  2,309,241$  2,448,500$  101%

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. 

Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



Federal Bar Association
SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Schedule III
For the  Twelve Month Ending September 30, 2016

FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 Percent

YTD YTD Budget of Budget

Schedule of Administrative Expenses

Administrative Expenses
(9.01) Salaries  $  1,033,411  $     999,985 1,130,000$   91%

(9.02) Payroll taxes 79,435          75,128          82,000          97%

(9.03) Employee Insurance 76,834          64,604          76,000          101%

(9.04) Employee Retirement 43,061          36,432          43,000          100%

(9.05) Employee Training 6,300            6,968            8,000            79%

(9.06) Management Travel 3,921            4,311            5,000            78%

(9.07) Outsourced Services 156,794        168,725        160,000        98%

(9.08) Dues and subscriptions 4,063            3,210            5,000            81%

(9.09) Leased Equipment 16,982          16,678          18,500          92%

(9.10) Repairs and maintenance 910               1,432            2,500            36%

(9.11) Rent 450,075        388,108        388,108        116%

(9.12) Insurance 17,877          17,429          18,000          99%

(9.13) Personal property taxes 3,762            4,245            3,500            107%

(9.14) Professional fees 15,270          14,938          15,000          102%

(9.15) Supplies 7,468            10,548          12,000          62%

(9.16) Computer/Internet Services 73,653          83,998          99,000          74%

(9.17) Telephone 24,727          24,822          26,000          95%

(9.18) Postage 6,090            -                   3,500            174%

(9.19) Depreciation-Furniture & Fixtures 5,982            6,662            6,000            100%

(9.20) Depreciation-Computer Equipment 83,794          58,314          85,000          99%

(9.21) Other Office Expense 55,202          32,078          45,000          123%

(9.22) Miscellaneous Expense 10,893          7,771            9,000            121%

------------------- ------------------- ------------------- ----------------

Total Administrative Expenses 2,176,504$  2,026,386$  2,240,108$  97%

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. 

Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



FBA S&D Combine

FY 2016 FY 2016 FY 2016

YTD YTD YTD

Support and Revenue:
(1) National dues  $      1,980,404  $                   -    $      1,980,404 

(2) Sustaining dues              728,728              728,728 

(3) Section/division dues             206,792              206,792 

(4) Conferences          1,138,355          1,138,355 

(5) Co-sponsored conferences                50,000                50,000 

(6) Sections/divisions activities                18,375               56,250                74,625 

(7) Administrative and other revenues 370,916                         370,916 

     (Schedule I)

In-Kind Contribution Revenues 390,075              390,075 

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------------

Total support and revenue 4,676,853        263,042           4,939,895        

Expenses:

(8) Activity expenses (Schedule II) 2,210,219         268,748                     2,478,967 

(9) General and overhead expenses 2,176,504                  2,176,504 

     (Schedule III)

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------------

     Total expenses 4,386,723        268,748           4,655,471        
---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------------

Change in net assets before other Income (Expense) 290,130            ( 5,706 )             284,424            

Other Income (Expense)
   Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments 136,538            136,538            

   Realized Gain/ (Loss) on Investments ( 23,519 )           ( 23,519 )           

---------------------------------------------------------------------

     Total Other Income (Expense) 113,019            113,019            

Change in Net Assets 403,149            ( 5,706 )             397,443            

Net Assets, beginning of year 2,249,964 

Current Net Assets 2,647,407$       

Federal Bar Association
Statement of Activities

For the  Twelve Month Ending September 30, 2016

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management 

has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



FBA S&D Combine

FY 2015 FY 2015 FY 2015

YTD YTD YTD

Support and Revenue:
(1) National dues  $      1,865,703  $    1,865,703 

(2) Sustaining dues              709,777            709,777 

(3) Section/division dues             173,772            173,772 

(4) Conferences          1,049,058         1,049,058 

(5) Co-sponsored conferences                50,000              50,000 

(6) Sections/divisions activities                13,575               58,653              72,228 

(7) Administrative and other revenues 289,181                       289,181 

     (Schedule I)

---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------

Total support and revenue 4,305,402        232,425           4,537,827      

Expenses:

(8) Activity expenses (Schedule II) 2,065,529         243,712                   2,309,241 

(9) General and overhead expenses 2,026,386                 2,026,386 

     (Schedule III)

---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------

     Total expenses 4,091,915        243,712           4,335,627      
---------------------- ---------------------- --------------------- -

Change in net assets before other Income (Expense) 213,487            ( 11,287 )          202,200          

Other Income (Expense)
   Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments ( 69,924 )           ( 69,924 )         

   Realized Gain/ (Loss) on Investments ( 12,185 )           ( 12,185 )         

-------------------------------------------------------------------

     Total Other Income (Expense) ( 82,109 )           ( 82,109 )         

Change in Net Assets 131,378            ( 11,287 )          120,091          

Net Assets, beginning of year 2,129,877 

Current Net Assets 2,249,968$     

Federal Bar Association
Statement of Activities

For the  Twelve Month Ending September 30, 2015

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management 

has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



2017 2016

Assets
Current Assets
     Cash and cash equivalents  $                     651,865  $                    406,060 

     Short-term Investments                          465,845                        425,046 

     Long-term Investments                      1,771,817                     1,696,771 

     Accounts Receivable                            70,785                          82,602 

     Inventory                            14,081                          12,747 

     Prepaid expenses                          104,217                          97,702 

-------------------------------- -------------------------------

          Total Current Assets 3,078,610                    2,720,928                   
-------------------------------- -------------------------------

Other Assets
     Furniture and fixtures                          186,201                        186,201 

     Computer equipment and software                          567,395                        520,895 

-------------------------------- -------------------------------

     Total Property and Equipment before Acc Depr 753,596                       707,096                      

     Accumulated depreciation                        (593,769)                       (539,549)

-------------------------------- -------------------------------

          Net Property and Equipment 159,827                       167,547                      
-------------------------------- -------------------------------

          Total Assets 3,238,437$                  2,888,475$                 
================== =================

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
     Accounts payable  $                     225,435  $                    168,502 

     Accrued annual leave                            35,032                          44,183 

     Deferred membership dues                          111,868                        122,260 

     Due to related entities                            59,904                             3,035 

     Other                            35,476                          28,494 

-------------------------------- -------------------------------

          Total Current Liabilities 486,263                       366,474                      
-------------------------------- -------------------------------

Net Assets
Board-designated net assets
    Sections/divisions 886,650                        887,360                       

    Operational reserve 350,000                        350,000                       

    Furniture and new fixtures reserve 63,466                          63,466                         

   Chapter assistance 36,204                          36,204                         

    Future activity reserve 20,000                          20,000                         

-------------------------------- -------------------------------

          Total Board-designated net assets 1,356,320                    1,357,030                   
-------------------------------- -------------------------------

   General Operating 1,395,854                    1,164,971                   
-------------------------------- -------------------------------

          Total Net Assets 2,752,174                    2,522,001
-------------------------------- -------------------------------

          Total Liabilities and Net Assets 3,238,437$                  2,888,475$                 
================== =================

December, 2016 and 2015
Statement of Financial Position

Federal Bar Association

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows 

and substantially all required disclosures.



FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2017 Percent

YTD YTD Budget of Budget

Support and Revenue:
(1) National dues  $             484,837  $             501,602 2,156,405$   22%

(2) Sustaining dues                 170,563                 185,375 790,660        22%

(3) Section/division dues                   46,575                   56,371 180,000        26%

(4) Conferences                 150,555                 181,920 1,240,000     12%

(5) Co-sponsored conferences                             -                             - 50,000          0%

(6) Sections/divisions activities                   25,490                   25,054 80,000          32%

(7) Administrative and other revenues 134,215                119,109                293,500        46%

     (Schedule I)

In-Kind Contribution Revenues 97,519 82,027                  328,108 30%

-------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------- ------------------

Total support and revenue 1,109,754            1,151,458            5,118,673    22%

Expenses:

(8) Activity expenses (Schedule II) 461,706                349,167                2,688,707     17%

(9) General and overhead expenses 527,550                547,434                2,384,608     22%

     (Schedule III)

-------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------- ------------------

     Total expenses 989,256               896,601               5,073,315    19%

-------------------------- ------------------------- ------------------- ------------------

Change in net assets before other Income (Expense) 120,498                254,857                

Other Income (Expense)
   Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments ( 15,731 )               17,396                  

   Realized Gain/ (Loss) on Investments -                        ( 216 )                    

     Total Other Income (Expense) ( 15,731 )               17,180                  

Change in Net Assets 104,767                272,037                

Net Assets, beginning of year 2,647,407 2,249,964             

Current Net Assets 2,752,174$           2,522,001$           

Federal Bar Association
Statement of Activities

For the Three Months Ending December 31, 2016

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management has elected to omit the statement 

of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



Federal Bar Association
SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER REVENUES

Schedule I
For the Three Months Ending December 31, 2016

FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2017 Percent

YTD YTD Budget of Budget

Schedule of Revenues

(7.02) Administrative Fees (FFBA)  $        7,125  $     5,875  $     28,500 25%

(7.03) Administrative Fees (Sections&Divisions)          85,936       55,188         86,000 100%

(7.04) Interest/Dividend Income          15,479       23,883                  - 

(7.05) FBA Need an Attorney            3,775         3,550         19,000 20%

(7.06) The Federal Lawyer & Publications            1,089         6,593         34,000 3%

(7.07) Royalty Income            3,041            916           4,000 76%

(7.09) Job Board            1,345         1,028           3,000 45%

(7.10) Webinars          15,057       14,895       105,000 14%

(7.11) List Sales               192         1,484           6,000 3%

(7.12) Miscellaneous Income            1,176         5,697           8,000 15%

------------------ --------------- ----------------- --------------

   Total Administrative and
    Other Revenues 134,215$    119,109$ 293,500$   46%

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. 

Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



Federal Bar Association
SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITY EXPENSES

Schedule II
For the Three Months Ending December 31, 2016

FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 Percent

YTD YTD Budget of Budget

Schedule of Activity Expenses

Activity Expenses
(8.01) President & BOD  $       12,120  $         2,870 145,000$     8%

(8.02) National Council -                   -                   8,000           0%

(8.03) Circuit Vice Presidents 127              85                50,000         0%

(8.04) NC Appointees -                   -                   15,000         0%

(8.05) Past Presidents -                   -                   10,000         0%

(8.06) Gov. Committees & Board -                   -                   500              0%

(8.07) National Elections -                   -                   22,000         0%

(8.08) Government Relations 17,511          24,691          80,000         22%

(8.09) Chapter Delegate 243              395              57,000         0%

(8.10) Chapter Leadership Training -                   -                   75,000         0%

(8.11) Chapter Activity Fund 2,200            (1,000)          20,000         11%

(8.12) Chapter Rebates 125,180        127,055        545,207       23%

(8.13) Chapter Services 1,713            1,528            14,000         12%

(8.14) Membership Services 17,775          13,023          80,000         22%

(8.15) Membership Programs 2,632            360              19,000         14%

(8.16) The Federal Lawyer & Publications 54,479          14,075          275,000       20%

(8.17) FBA Conferences 60,038          51,356          895,000       7%

(8.18) Membership Marketing 8,494            1,920            25,000         34%

(8.19) Meetings Marketing 4,740            5,620            20,000         24%

(8.20) Webinar CLE Fees 1,965            1,923            20,000         10%

------------------- ------------------- ------------------ -----------------

   Subtotal Activity Expenses 309,217       243,901       2,375,707    13%

(8.21) Section and Divisions 149,214        104,320        260,000       57%

(8.22) FBA Funded Divisions 3,248            933              45,000         7%

(8.23) Section Council 27                                 13 3,000           1%

(8.24) Section Activity Fund 5,000           0%

------------------- ------------------- ------------------ -----------------

   Subtotal Section & Division
     Activity Expense 152,489       105,266       313,000       49%

------------------- ------------------- ------------------ -----------------

Total Activity Expenses 461,706$     349,167$     2,688,707$  17%

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. 

Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



Federal Bar Association
SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Schedule III
For the Three Months Ending December 31, 2016

FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 Percent

YTD YTD Budget of Budget

Schedule of Administrative Expenses

Administrative Expenses
(9.01) Salaries  $     250,167  $     287,767 1,185,000$   21%

(9.02) Payroll taxes 18,464          17,829          95,000          19%

(9.03) Employee Insurance 19,495          19,305          90,000          22%

(9.04) Employee Retirement 9,693            9,319            52,000          19%

(9.05) Employee Training 649               -                   10,000          6%

(9.06) Management Travel 72                 1,210            6,000            1%

(9.07) Outsourced Services 41,955          36,513          185,000        23%

(9.08) Dues and subscriptions 1,462            525               5,000            29%

(9.09) Leased Equipment 5,604            3,014            25,000          22%

(9.10) Repairs and maintenance 165               415               2,000            8%

(9.11) Rent 112,519        97,027          388,108        29%

(9.12) Insurance 4,575            4,583            18,000          25%

(9.13) Personal property taxes 616               710               5,000            12%

(9.14) Professional fees 6,200            6,200            15,500          40%

(9.15) Supplies 2,044            -                   12,000          17%

(9.16) Computer/Internet Services 14,433          16,450          130,000        11%

(9.17) Telephone 5,874            6,178            26,000          23%

(9.18) Postage -                   -                   4,000            0%

(9.19) Depreciation-Furniture & Fixtures 1,495            1,495            6,000            25%

(9.20) Depreciation-Computer Equipment 16,183          12,963          65,000          25%

(9.21) Other Office Expense 14,739          9,389            50,000          29%

(9.22) Miscellaneous Expense 1,146            16,542          10,000          11%

------------------- ------------------- ------------------- ----------------

Total Administrative Expenses 527,550$     547,434$     2,384,608$  22%

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. 

Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



FBA S&D Combine

FY 2017 FY 2017 FY 2017

YTD YTD YTD

Support and Revenue:
(1) National dues  $         484,837  $                   -    $         484,837 

(2) Sustaining dues              170,563              170,563 

(3) Section/division dues               46,575                46,575 

(4) Conferences              150,555              150,555 

(5) Co-sponsored conferences                          -                          - 

(6) Sections/divisions activities                12,600               12,890                25,490 

(7) Administrative and other revenues 134,215                         134,215 

     (Schedule I)

In-Kind Contribution Revenues 97,519                97,519 

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------------

Total support and revenue 1,050,289        59,465             1,109,754        

Expenses:

(8) Activity expenses (Schedule II) 312,492            149,214                         461,706 

(9) General and overhead expenses 527,550                         527,550 

     (Schedule III)

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------------

     Total expenses 840,042           149,214           989,256           
---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------------

Change in net assets before other Income (Expense) 210,247            ( 89,749 )           120,498            

Other Income (Expense)
   Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments ( 15,731 )           ( 15,731 )           

   Realized Gain/ (Loss) on Investments -                    -                    

---------------------------------------------------------------------

     Total Other Income (Expense) ( 15,731 )           ( 15,731 )           

Change in Net Assets 194,516            ( 89,749 )           104,767            

Net Assets, beginning of year 2,647,407 

Current Net Assets 2,752,174$       

Federal Bar Association
Statement of Activities

For the Three Months Ending December 31, 2016

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management 

has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



FBA S&D Combine

FY 2016 FY 2016 FY 2016

YTD YTD YTD

Support and Revenue:
(1) National dues  $         501,602  $        501,602 

(2) Sustaining dues              185,375            185,375 

(3) Section/division dues               56,371              56,371 

(4) Conferences              181,920            181,920 

(5) Co-sponsored conferences                          -                        - 

(6) Sections/divisions activities                17,100                 7,954              25,054 

(7) Administrative and other revenues 119,109                       119,109 

     (Schedule I)

---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------

Total support and revenue 1,087,133        64,325             1,151,458      

Expenses:

(8) Activity expenses (Schedule II) 244,847            104,320                      349,167 

(9) General and overhead expenses 547,434                       547,434 

     (Schedule III)

---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------

     Total expenses 792,281           104,320           896,601          
---------------------- ---------------------- --------------------- -

Change in net assets before other Income (Expense) 294,852            ( 39,995 )          254,857          

Other Income (Expense)
   Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments 17,396              17,396            

   Realized Gain/ (Loss) on Investments ( 216 )                ( 216 )              

-------------------------------------------------------------------

     Total Other Income (Expense) 17,180              17,180            

Change in Net Assets 312,032            ( 39,995 )          272,037          

Net Assets, beginning of year 2,249,964 

Current Net Assets 2,522,001$     

Federal Bar Association
Statement of Activities

For the Three Months Ending December 31, 2015

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management 

has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



 

 

 
TAB D 

Report from the President of the Foundation of the FBA 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 

The Foundation of the Federal Bar Association 
Midyear Report 

 

 

Chapter Community Outreach Grants 

The Foundation Grants Committee has approved the following grants for 2017: 

Cincinnati/Northern Kentucky Chapter – Half-day Court Camp 

To sponsor half-day Court Camp for local students at the Federal Courthouse. The goal is to 
bring up to 100 students from 2-5 area high schools to the federal courthouse for a half-day 
“camp” that will include tours of facilities and the opportunity to meet with judges and 
representatives of the agencies housed in the courthouse. Both judges and schools in our area 
have expressed interest in courthouse field trips for students. The local chapter has made a major 
effort to form a Civics Liaison Committee (of private practitioners, government attorneys and 
local law students) to participate in National Community Outreach in April 2017 in this way, and 
otherwise to facilitate linkage between the courts and local schools. 

Eastern District of Michigan Chapter – Law Day 

The 2017 Law Day Event, hosted by the District Court, EDMI, Federal Bar Association, and the 
Wolverine Bar Association will focus on the role of federal courts and agencies protecting civil 
rights and civil liberties following up on last year's 50th anniversary of Miranda v Arizona. We 
received a grant last year to assist with transportation that resulted in a significant increase in 
participation by high school students whose teachers did not otherwise have funding for 
transportation. We were able to host students from four high schools, with one school sending 
two busloads of students. Those students participated in panel discussions lead by expert 
practitioners, judges and law enforcement personnel providing insight on the impact of the 
Miranda decision. Without the transportation assistance, those schools would not have been able 
to participate. 

Eastern District of North Carolina – Federal Court Field Trip: A Real Life Civics Lesson at the 
EDNC 

The EDNC Chapter of the FBA is planning a Federal Court Field Trip for middle and high 
school students who are taking a civics class and/or who are otherwise interested in the law. We 
chose this project to give young students an opportunity to experience the federal court system in 



 
 

 
 

a positive way and hopefully to encourage some to pursue the practice of law. Grant funds will  
provide transportation for the students to the courthouse, and will provide lunch for students and 
volunteers, and to give students a small gift/token to remind them of the lessons they learned 
from the court. We plan to reach out to the chapter membership and encourage practicing 
attorneys to volunteer to accompany the students while they are in the court as well as speak to 
the students about their own path into the law. Our event is tentatively scheduled for mid-April 
of 2017. 

Nevada Chapter – National High School Mock Trial Competition 

The Nevada Chapter received funding to support the 2018 National High School Mock Trial 
Competition, hosted in Reno, Nevada May 17-19, 2018. This partnership with the State Bar of 
Nevada and the Nevada Bar Foundation, will bring more than 1,500 high school students, 
coaches, families, and judges from across the country to compete at the highest level. The event 
also brings a unique opportunity to the Nevada Chapter to join local and statewide bar 
associations and members of the judiciary to support law related education in the state and 
nationally. 

Orlando Chapter – Schoolhouse to Courthouse 

The Orlando Chapter received funding to facilitate its participation in the Federal Bar 
Association's Civics Outreach project in April 2017.  The Orlando Chapter participated in April 
2016 and our program was well-received by the students and the Court, and we look forward to 
providing the same opportunity to local high school students in the upcoming year.  The funding 
will assist the Orlando Chapter with covering the cost of the necessary task of busing the 
students to the courthouse, as well as providing lunch for the students as part of the program. 

Hawai’i Chapter – Civil Pro Bono Panel 

The FBA, Hawai'i Chapter, is implementing a new Civil Pro Bono Panel Program to provide 
legal services in civil cases to the poor and to increase access to justice.  Hawai'i has the sixth-
highest poverty rate in the nation. A new court order allows attorneys to provide unbundled legal 
services when representing pro se litigants in the program. The Hawai'i FBA is soliciting lawyers 
to represent pro se litigants and creating a panel of volunteer experienced mentors, including on 
neighbor islands. Grant funds will be used for training, publicity and recruitment and subsidizing 
panel participation costs. 

Hon. Raymond L. Acosta Puerto Rico Chapter – Veterans Outreach CLE 

The Puerto Rico Chapter and the Veterans and Military Law Section will hold a full day CLE on 
veteran issues to train lawyers and nonlawyers who assist veterans.  Puerto Rico has a large 
veteran population with diverse needs. The Veterans and Military Law Section will bring experts 



 
 

 
 

from the mainland to assist the Puerto Rico Chapter and Puerto Rico lawyers who help the 
veterans' community. The Puerto Rico Chapter and the Section will also reach out to Puerto Rico 
law schools to encourage and promote the establishment of legal services for veterans at the law 
schools' legal aid clinics. 

National Community Outreach Project 

Building upon the enormously positive response to the inaugural National Community Outreach 
Project in 2016, the Foundation has provided funding for these 2017 Participants: 

Eastern District of New York Chapter 

Minnesota Chapter 

Chattanooga Chapter 

Eastern District of Pennsylvania Chapter 

Knoxville Chapter 

DC Chapter and Pentagon Chapter 

Inland Empire Chapter 

Massachusetts Chapter 

Northern District of Indiana Chapter 

San Antonio Chapter 

Montana Chapter 

Intellectual Property Law Section 

Younger Lawyers Division 

Law Student Division 

Western District of Pennsylvania Chapter 

LGBT Law Section 

Phoenix Chapter 

Eastern District of North Carolina Chapter 

Chicago Chapter 



 
 

 
 

Oklahoma City Chapter 

Palm Beach Chapter 

Utah Chapter 

Middle District of Pennsylvania Chapter 

South Carolina Chapter 

Tampa Bay Chapter 

San Diego Chapter 

Tax Law Section 

Central District of Illinois Chapter  

 

Robert A. McNew Law Scholarship 

The Foundation of the Federal Bar Association is pleased to announce the recipient of the 2017 
Robert A. McNew Law Student Scholarship: Ms. Valerie Brummel of Northwestern University 
Pritzker School of Law. 

Valerie's undergraduate and law school paths have consistently pointed her towards federal 
practice. As a college student, one of her greatest joys was volunteering with the Head Start 
program in Ann Arbor. She spent two years as a Volunteer Coordinator and a volunteer, working 
with children from low-income families, autistic children, and children with cochlear implants. 
Valerie observed the impact of federally funded preschool on these young lives.   

Valerie spent two summers working for United States Congressmen: the first summer she 
worked in Washington, DC, for Carl Levin, the Senator from Michigan. Working in the Capitol 
Building gave her an opportunity to see the federal government at work. She attended several 
Congressional hearings throughout the summer. The following summer, she worked in Dearborn, 
Michigan for John D. Dingell, the Representative from the 12th District in southeast Michigan. 
Here Valerie observed the federal government's ability to create change at a local level. She 
worked side by side with case workers to help constituents with issues regarding veteran's 
benefits, immigration, and disability law.  

 While applying to law school, Valerie visited several top law schools across the country, a 
process which reinforced her decision to pursue a legal career. She discovered that she loved the 
fast-paced style of learning, the importance of good writing, and the emphasis placed on logical 



 
 

 
 

reasoning. Most importantly, she loved the promise of what a law degree could help her achieve 
in the future - the ability to influence law and policy to positively impact many people.  

After her first year of law school, Valerie spent the summer as a judicial extern for Judge Robert 
M. Dow of the Northern District of Illinois. While there, she observed the judge conduct his 
calendar call and watched hearings and trial proceedings. She completed legal research memos 
and wrote opinions under the supervision of law clerks. The experience strengthened her legal 
research and writing skills and gave her the chance to see several stages of the litigation process 
first hand. 

Valerie enjoyed the externship so much that she accepted a position as a law clerk for Judge 
Milton Shadur of the Northern District of Illinois. 

Foundation Diversity Grant 

2017 marks the inaugural year of the Foundation Diversity Grant. The grant focuses on 
educational, community service, or outreach projects or programs with a diversity focus that 
involve FBA Chapter, Section, Division, or member participation. 

Moot Court Sponsorship 

The Foundation continues its sponsorship of the Moot Court Competition for 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



2016 2015

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $ 60,454                $ 17,814             

Investments 855,959              878,171           

Due from affiliates 9,476                  4,767               

Promises to give 24,149                39,065             

Prepaid expense 700                     700                  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 950,738              940,516           

OTHER ASSETS

Promises to give, long-term net 53,214                43,021             

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 53,214                43,021             

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,003,952         $ 983,537          

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 1,168                  $ 3,208               

Accrued Expenses 500                     -                       

Deferred Revenue -                          

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,668                  3,208               

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 789,624              759,088           

Temporarily restricted 212,660              221,241           

TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,002,284           980,329           

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,003,952         $ 983,537          

THE FOUNDATION OF THE FEDERAL BAR ASSOCIATION
Statement of Financial Position
September  30, 2016 and 2015

N E T   A S S E T S

A S S E T S

L I A B I L I T I E S

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. 

Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



THE FOUNDATION OF THE FEDERAL BAR ASSOCIATION
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
For the Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2016

FY2016 FY2015 FY2016 Percent
YTD YTD Budget of Budget

Revenues:
Grants and Contributions:
   Fellows' Contributions $ 28,443              $ 11,237         $ 35,000          81%

   Voluntary Contributions 56,256              58,346         70,000          80%

   Other Grants and Contributions 64,850              18,550         45,000          144%

   Silent Auction 2,650                3,424           10,000          27%

Support and Revenue:
   Fellows Dinner 8,265                7,830           8,000            103%

   Interest Earned 35,289              41,417         30,000          118%

   Miscellaneous Revenue 35                     871              6,000            1%

     Total Revenue 195,788           141,675       204,000        96%

Expenses:
   Program  

    Grants and Awards 164,756            76,000         70,000          235%

    Fellows Dinner 7,055                8,541           8,000            88%

    Travel 4,767                2,660           

    Program Expense 48                     244              4,000            1%

          Total Program 176,626            87,445         82,000          215%

   Management and Support
    Administrative Fees 13,500              13,500         13,500          100%

    Insurance 763                   707              600               127%

    Board Expense 1,382                713              7,500            18%

    Office Expense 3,695                347              500               739%

    Postage 1,218                774              800               152%

    Professional Fees 20,798              8,994           22,000          95%

    Miscellaneous Expense 6,921                7,595           7,000            99%

        Total Management and Support 48,277              32,630         51,900          93%

        Total Expenses 224,902           120,075       133,900        168%

     Change in Net Assets before Other Income (Expense) (29,115)            21,600         70,100          

Other Income (Expense)
   Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments 41,678              (58,570)        

   Realized Gain/ (Loss) on Investments / Sale of Asset 9,391                (7,598)          

     Total Other Income (Expense) 51,069             (66,168)        

     Change in Net Assets 21,955              (44,568)        

     Net Assets, Beginning of Year 980,329            1,024,897    

     Net Assets $ 1,002,284        $ 980,329       

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management 

has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



Minnesota No. CA Michael Shaw Boots Judicial John T.

Donor Donor Public Service Fisher Research & Moot Court Stewart, Jr. Byron

Operating Foundation Fellow Advised Advised Award Memorial Education Competition Scholarship Woodside

Fund Corpus LT Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Support and Revenue:
Grants and Contributions:

Voluntary Contributions 56,256           -$                  -$           -$            -$        -$             -$            -$              -$           -$           -$          56,256$           

Fellows program 27,873              570           -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               -              28,443            

Fellows Dinner 8,265                -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               8,265              

Other Grants and Contributions 50                  54,650      -            10,000       -                  -               -               -              64,700            

Silent Auction 2,650             -                       -                -            -                  -               -               2,650              

Memoriams and Remembrances 150                -                       -                -            -                  -                  -               -               -              150                 

Miscellaneous income 35                  -                       -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               -              35                   

Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Inv. 41,678           -                       -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               -              41,678            

Realized Gain/ (Loss) on Inv. 9,391             -                       -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               9,391              

Interest Income 10,333           18,048              291           189       109            857            4,292          774          131          265         35,289            

Total Support and Revenue 120,543         54,186              570             54,941        189         10,109         857             4,292            774            131            265           246,857           

Expenses: 
Fellows Dinner Expense -                     7,055                -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               -              7,055              

Travel 4,767                4,767              

Program Expenses -                     48                    -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               -              48                   

Board Meeting Expense 1,382             -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               -              1,382              

Grants 94,106           -                       54,650      10,000       1,000         -                  5,000       -               -              164,756          

Administrative Costs 13,500           -                       -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -              13,500            

Insurance 763                -                       -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               -              763                 

Postage and Mailing Expense 1,218             -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               -              1,218              

Professional Fees 10,739           -                       -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               10,059    20,798            

Supplies 3,695             -                       -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               -              3,695              

Miscellaneous Expense 6,921             -                       -                -            -                  -                 -                  -               -               -              6,921              

Total Expenses 132,323         11,870              -                 54,650        -              10,000         1,000          -                    5,000         -                 10,059      224,902           

Change in Net Assets (11,781)          42,316              570           291           189       109            (143)           4,292          (4,226)      131          (9,794)     21,955            

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 257,709         501,379            26,888        8,087          5,247      3,039           23,807        119,245        21,489       3,645         9,794        980,329           

Net Assets, End of Period 245,928$       543,695$          27,458$      8,378$        5,436$    3,148$         23,664$      123,537$      17,263$     3,776$       -$          1,002,284$      

Temporarily RestrictedUnrestricted

THE FOUNDATION OF THE FEDERAL BAR ASSOCIATION
Schedule of Fund Activity

For the Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2016

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required 

disclosures.



2017 2016

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $ 67,527                $ 40,412             

Investments 852,160              883,235           

Due from affiliates 60,515                3,035               

Promises to give 20,269                35,304             

Prepaid expense 509                     509                  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,000,980           962,495           

OTHER ASSETS

Promises to give, long-term net 53,214                42,421             

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 53,214                42,421             

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,054,194         $ 1,004,916       

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 203                     $ 203                  

Accrued Expenses -                          -                       

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 203                     203                  

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 789,736              783,472           

Temporarily restricted 264,255              221,241           

TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,053,991           1,004,713        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,054,194         $ 1,004,916       

THE FOUNDATION OF THE FEDERAL BAR ASSOCIATION
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2016 and 2015

N E T   A S S E T S

A S S E T S

L I A B I L I T I E S

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. 

Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



THE FOUNDATION OF THE FEDERAL BAR ASSOCIATION
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2016

FY2017 FY2016 FY2017 Percent
YTD YTD Budget of Budget

Revenues:
Grants and Contributions:
   Fellows' Contributions $ 1,200                $ 3,300           $ 20,000          6%

   Voluntary Contributions 15,870              15,571         65,000          24%

   Other Grants and Contributions 55,754              54,700         70,000          80%

   Silent Auction 600                   -                   3,400            18%

Support and Revenue:
   Fellows Dinner -                       (290)             8,500            0%

   Interest Earned 9,641                23,345         32,000          30%

   Miscellaneous Revenue -                       -                   1,000            0%

     Total Revenue 83,065             96,625         199,900        42%

Expenses:
   Program  

    Grants and Awards 7,440                64,650         120,000        6%

    Fellows Dinner -                       -                   8,000            0%

    Travel -                       -                   3,300            0%

    Program Expense 877                   48                1,000            88%

          Total Program 8,317                64,698         132,300        6%

   Management and Support
    Administrative Fees 3,375                3,375           13,500          25%

    Insurance 191                   191              600               32%

    Board Expense -                       -                   1,000            0%

    Office Expense 352                   1,296           4,000            9%

    Postage 335                   417              1,200            28%

    Professional Fees 6,424                5,075           22,000          29%

    Miscellaneous Expense 1,145                1,159           5,000            23%

        Total Management and Support 11,822              11,512         47,300          25%

        Total Expenses 20,139             76,210         179,600        11%

     Change in Net Assets before Other Income (Expense) 62,926              20,415         20,300          

Other Income (Expense)
   Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments (11,218)            9,520           

   Realized Gain/ (Loss) on Investments / Sale of Asset -                       (5,551)          

     Total Other Income (Expense) (11,218)            3,969           

     Change in Net Assets 51,707              24,384         

     Net Assets, Beginning of Year 1,002,284         980,329       

     Net Assets $ 1,053,991        $ 1,004,713    

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management 

has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and substantially all required disclosures.



Minnesota No. CA Michael Shaw Boots Judicial John T.

Donor Donor Public Service Fisher Research & Moot Court Stewart, Jr.
Operating Foundation Fellow Advised Advised Award Memorial Education Competition Scholarship

Fund Corpus LT Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Support and Revenue:
Grants and Contributions:

Voluntary Contributions 15,870           -$                -$          -$           -$      -$            -$          -$             -$         -$         15,870$           
Fellows program 1,200              -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              1,200              
Fellows Dinner -                      -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              -                      
Other Grants and Contributions 500                55,254      -            -                  -                  -              -              55,754            
Silent Auction 600                -                      -                -            -                  -              -              600                 
Memoriams and Remembrances -                     -                      -                -            -                  -                  -              -              -                      
Miscellaneous income -                     -                      -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              -                      
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Inv. (11,218)          -                      -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              (11,218)           
Realized Gain/ (Loss) on Inv. -                     -                      -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              -                      
Interest Income 2,630             5,230              81             52         30               228           1,188          166         36            9,641              

Total Support and Revenue 8,382             6,430               -                 55,335        52           30                228             1,188            166           36              71,847             

Expenses: 
Fellows Dinner Expense -                     -                      -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              -                      
Travel -                      -                      
Program Expenses -                     877                  -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              877                 
Board Meeting Expense -                     -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              -                      
Grants 2,000             -                      -                5,440    -                  -               -                  -              -              7,440              
Administrative Costs 3,375             -                      -                -            -                  -               -                  -              3,375              
Insurance 191                -                      -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              191                 
Postage and Mailing Expense 335                -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              335                 
Professional Fees 6,424             -                      -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              6,424              
Supplies 352                -                      -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              352                 
Miscellaneous Expense 1,145             -                      -                -            -                  -               -                  -              -              1,145              

Total Expenses 13,822           877                   -                 -                  5,440      -                   -                 -                    -                -                20,139             

Change in Net Assets (5,440)            5,553              -               55,335      (5,388)  30               228           1,188          166         36            51,707            

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 245,928         543,695           27,458       8,378          5,436      3,148           23,664       123,537        17,263      3,776        1,002,283        

Net Assets, End of Period 240,488$       549,248$         27,458$     63,713$      48$         3,178$        23,892$     124,725$      17,429$    3,812$      1,053,991$      

Temporarily RestrictedUnrestricted

THE FOUNDATION OF THE FEDERAL BAR ASSOCIATION
Schedule of Fund Activity

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2016

These financial statements were prepared by Tate Tryon, CPAs. The statements were not subject to an audit, or other assurance services. Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows and 

substantially all required disclosures.



 

 

 
TAB E 

Report from the Chair of the Government Relations 
Committee 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

February 13, 2017 

 

TO:  National Council  

FROM: West Allen, Chair, Government Relations Committee  
  Bruce Moyer, Counsel for Government Relations 
 
SUBJ:  Update on Government Relations and Public Policy Developments  

 
 
The first three weeks of the Trump Administration have been bold and turbulent, giving birth to 
many of the actions that candidate Trump promised during his campaign, with 20 executive 
orders in ten days.  One of them, imposing a temporary travel ban on the flow of immigrants and 
refugees into the United States, precipitated the first major legal challenges to the new 
Administration.  The President nominated Circuit Judge Neil Gorsuch to become associate 
justice to the United States Supreme Court, and Sen. Jeffrey Sessions was confirmed by the 
Senate as Attorney General.  Judicial vacancies on the federal bench remained at high levels.   
 
 
The Gorsuch Nomination  
 
President Trump on January 31 nominated Judge Neil M. Gorsuch of the Denver-based Tenth 
Circuit Court of Appeals to the United States Supreme Court, succeeding the late Justice Antonin 
Scalia.  Now it is up to the Senate again to give its “Advice and Consent,” and Senate Judiciary 
Committee Chairman Chuck Grassley (R-IA) has indicated he will convene hearings on the 
nomination by mid-March, in line with the timeline since the 1980’s for Supreme Court 
nomination hearings. Since 1900, the Senate has given hearings to every Supreme Court 
nominee except for two who withdrew and Judge Merrick Garland. 
 
The Senate unanimously approved Judge Gorsuch’s nomination to the Tenth Circuit in 2007, but 
a contentious path to confirmation yet remains.  Democratic opposition, compounded by 
frustration over Republican obstruction over the Garland nomination last year, will more likely 
delay confirmation than defeat it.  If confirmed, the 49-year old appeals court judge would be the 
first conservative addition to the Supreme Court in a decade and the youngest justice since 
Clarence Thomas.  Judge Gorsuch also would be the first former law clerk to serve on the bench 
alongside his or her old boss, Justice Anthony Kennedy. 
 
Whether Senate Republicans invoke the so-called nuclear option and remove the 60-vote 
requirement on ending filibusters on Supreme Court nominations is unclear.  Democrats ended 
the requirement on district and circuit nominations in November 2013 when they controlled the 



 
 
 

2 
 

Senate.  President Donald Trump on February 1 said Senate Republicans should "go for it" and 
invoke the nuclear option. 

 
 
The Sessions Confirmation 
 
In other action, the Senate Judiciary Committee on February 8 confirmed the nomination of Sen. 
Jeff Sessions (R-AL) as Attorney General, 52-47, almost entirely along party lines.  Observers 
attributed the vote to a reflection of Sessions' long conservative voting record and the hyper-
partisanship of contemporary politics. A recent Pew Research Center poll showed that 86 percent 
of people describe the country as more politically divided today than in the past, while 61 
percent anticipate bickering between the two political parties to increase in the year ahead. 
 
 

Circuit and District Judicial Vacancies 

As of February 13, in addition to an open Supreme Court seat, 117 Article III judicial vacancies 
await nomination by the President, including 18 seats on the federal courts of appeals and 91 
federal district court seats. That is more than twice as many vacancies that existed when 
President Obama took office in 2009, providing considerable opportunity to the new 
Administration to populate and reshape the federal bench.  

The Federal Judiciary website reported the following Article III vacancies as of February 13, 
2017: 

         Current Vacancies Nominees Pending 
Supreme Court      1     1 
Courts of Appeal    18     0 
District Courts     91     0 
US Ct of International Trade     2     0 
US Ct of Federal Claims     6     0 
Total               118     1 
   

Forty-four of the vacancies are considered “judicial emergencies” by the Judicial Conference, the 
policy-making body of the Federal Judiciary. 

 

Bankruptcy Filings 
 
The Federal Judiciary reported on January 25, 2017 that filings in federal bankruptcy courts 
during 2016 declined by 5.9 percent.  The number of filings – 794,960 cases – represented the 
lowest number of filings for any calendar year since 2006, and the sixth consecutive calendar 
year that filings have fallen.  Observers predict that a decline in bankruptcy filings over the next 
12-24 months will continue, but at a slower pace, followed by a rise in filings as interest rates 
continue to creep up.  



 
 
 

3 
 

Recently-Introduced Judgeships Legislation 
 
The Federal Bar Association supports the authorization and establishment of additional 
permanent and temporary federal judgeships, including bankruptcy judgeships, along with 
support personnel, as proposed by the Judicial Conference of the United States, when rising 
caseloads in the federal courts threaten the prompt delivery of justice.  

The Judicial Conference is expected next month to transmit its biennial recommendations to 
Congress for the establishment of additional federal judgeships in alignment with current 
caseload demands.  On April 20 during FBA Capitol Hill Day, FBA leaders and members will 
educate Congress about how overwhelming caseloads threaten the ability of the Third Branch to 
effectively administer justice.   

In the meantime, several bills have been introduced in the 115th Congress to establish additional 
district judgeships, realign the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals, and convert or add additional 
bankruptcy judgeships.  They include: 

 
H.R. 136 - Bankruptcy Judgeship Act of 2017 
Introduced by Rep. John Conyers (D-MI) on January 3, 2017. 
Referred to House Subcommittee on Regulatory Reform, Commercial and Antitrust Law. 
 

H.R. 196 - Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals Judgeship and Reorganization Act of 2017 
Introduced by Rep. Michael Simpson (R-ID) on January 3, 2017. 
Referred to the House Subcommittee on Courts, Intellectual Property, and the Internet. 
 
H.R. 250 - Judicial Administration and Improvement Act 
Introduced by Rep. Andy Biggs (R-AZ) on January 4, 2017. 
Referred to the House Subcommittee on Courts, Intellectual Property, and the Internet. 
 
S. 209, H.R. 197 and H.R. 503 – Idaho Judgeship Legislation 
H.R. 197 was introduced by Rep. Michael Simpson (R-ID) on January 3, 2017 and referred to 
the Senate Judiciary Committee. 
H.R. 503 was introduced by Rep. Raul Labrador (R-ID) on January12, 2017 and referred to the 
House Subcommittee on Courts, Intellectual Property, and the Internet. 
S. 209 was introduced by Sen. Mike Crapo (R-ID) on January 23, 2017 and referred to the 
Senate Judiciary Committee. 
 
 

Call for Nominations to the 2018 FBA Issues Agenda 

The deadline for nominations to the FBA FY 2018 Issues Agenda has been extended to 
March 31, 2017.  

The Federal Bar Association Issues Agenda provides the road map for FBA’s government 
relations advocacy to Congress and the Executive Branch.  It is the prioritized list of policy 



 
 
 

4 
 

issues to which the FBA will devote time and resources to advance federal jurisprudence and 
improve our federal legal system.  Through the Issues Agenda, FBA members and components 
have a voice in the future of FBA’s advocacy. 

Issue Agenda nominations should be related to the FBA’s primary mission and focus on its 
principal areas of concern: (1) the federal administration of justice, (2) federal jurisprudence, and 
(3) federal legal policy.  

New issues may be nominated by any FBA member, chapter, section or division.  The current 
2017 Issues Agenda is here.  To submit a nomination for the Issues Agenda, please complete this 
form. Again, nominations will be accepted up to and through the new deadline of March 31.  
 
 
Future Government Relations Events 
 
FBA Mid-Year Meeting – Saturday, March 18, Capital Hilton Hotel, Washington, D.C. 

The Government Relations Committee, with the assistance of the Foundation of the Federal Bar 
Association, will sponsor a timely panel discussion, ‘Protecting the Homeland and Honoring 
Civil Liberties:  How Can the Constitution Guide Us?’ The panel will explore the delicate 
balance between national security and Constitutional rights amid the war against Islamic 
radicalism, featuring government and legal experts. 

Jeffrey Rosen, professor of law at George Washington University Law School and 
CEO/President of the National Constitution Center, will deliver the luncheon keynote address. 
 

FBA Capitol Hill Day – Thursday, April 20, 2017 

Plan to participate in this acclaimed annual event as FBA leaders and members from across the 
country meet with House and Senate offices to discuss important legislative issues that impact 
the administration of justice and the federal courts. During meetings on Capitol Hill, FBA 
participants will discuss issues critical to the Third Branch, including: adequate funding for the 
federal courts, filling judicial vacancies promptly, and sufficient judgeships to render justice. 

Visit http://www.fedbar.org/CapitolHill17 for additional information and to register online. 

   

 


	1  NC Mid Year meeting cover page
	2 Midyear NC Agenda
	3 TAB A
	4 9-17-16 NC Minutes
	5 Constitution Bylaws Rules and Resolutions Committee - 2017FEB10 - Comm...
	6 ABA Delegate Cover Letter
	7 ABA House of Delegates 2017 Mid-Year Meeting Daily ...
	8 FBBC Memo covering report  of financials 2-9-17
	9 12-2016 FBBC Financials
	10 TAB B
	11 President's Report
	12 Actions of the BOD FY17
	13 TAB C
	14 FBA September 2016 Financials
	15 FBA December 2016 Financials
	16 TAB D
	17 Foundation Report - Midyear 2017
	18 FFBA September 2016 Financials
	19 FFBA December 2016 Financials
	20 TAB E
	21 GRC Update - 2017-0210

